The Police Commission of the City and County of San Francisco met in Room 400, City Hall, #1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, at 6:21 p.m., in a Regular Meeting.

PRESENT:Commissioners Sparks, Marshall, Lee, MazzuccoABSENT:Commissioners Campos, DeJesus, Onek

#### **ADOPTION OF MINUTES**

#### **Regular Meeting of July 30, 2008**

Motion by Commissioner Marshall, second by Commissioner Mazzucco. Approved 4-0.

#### **PUBLIC COMMENT**

Unidentified discussed concerns regarding the shooting of Theresa Sheehan.

Daniel Landry discussed charter amendment regarding increase the number of police commissioners.

Leslie Trask expressed concern regarding increase in violent crimes in the city and discussed concern regarding the sanctuary city ordinance.

#### **REPORTS TO THE COMMISSION**

- a. Chief's Report
- Update on significant policing efforts by Department members

Chief Fong highlighted some of the great work done by members of the Department.

# b. OCC Director's Report Review of Recent Activities

Director Hicks reported and introduced four new OCC investigators: Hope Martinez, Candace Miles Street, Samuel Torres, and Gregory Underwood. Director Hicks reported regarding a question by Commissioner Lee in regards to training of mediators. Director Hicks stated that mediators are required to certify that they have taken a 30-hours substantive mediation training in a single course. They have to attend an OCC orientation and agree to serve on a pro bono basis. They cannot be associated with the Police Department or be involved in a law firm with substantial criminal law practice. Director Hicks reported that 42 OCC cases have been mediated.

Commissioner Mazzucco commended Director Hicks on the new hiring of new investigators.

#### c. Commission Reports

- Commission President's Report
- Commissioners' Reports

None

#### PUBLIC COMMENT

Daniel Landry expressed concerns regarding the OCC and discussed concerns regarding homicides.

Jeannette Berger discussed concerns regarding the district attorney.

### **REPORT REGARDING SAN FRANCISCO'S VIOLENCE PREVENTION PLAN**

Ms. Maya Dillard Smith, Director of Violence Prevention, reported regarding San Francisco's Violence Prevention Plan.

Commissioner Sparks asked how narcotics and drug enforcement relate to the violence prevention planning. Ms. Smith stated that there has to be strong enforcement against narcotics in the city and stated that what underlies a lot of the violence that are seen today are crack babies that have come of age and these are children who have not been parented and who have been abandoned and neglected. Ms. Smith talked about the Alive and Free Campaign and Training and stated that at the core of the philosophy is getting at the anger, fear, and pain that a lot of these children feel about being neglected and abused.

Commissioner Sparks also asked how this relates with the District Attorney's Office and the criminal justice system. Ms. Smith stated that the criminal justice agency are engaged in dialogued in regards to enforcement and consequence mechanism of the program. Ms. Smith stated that oversight of implementation will be under the violence prevention advisory committee. As far as guidance of the plan, overseeing the workings of the agencies will be under her office.

Commissioner Marshall described the involvement of Omega Boys Club with the Violence Prevention Program.

Commissioner Mazzucco commended Ms. Dillard Smith for a comprehensive plan.

### PUBLIC COMMENT

Daniel Landry commend Dr. Marshall for his work in regards to crime prevention.

Leslie Trask discussed concerns regarding homicides.

#### **ROUTINE ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS**

## a. Commission Announcement

- Reassignment of Disciplinary Case No. C07-023 to Commissioner Onek (Resolution No. 43-08)
- Reassignment of Disciplinary Case No. C08-030 to
- Commissioner Onek (Resolution No. 44-08)
- Reassignment of Disciplinary Case No. C07-076 to Commissioner Onek (Resolution No. 45-08)

Lieutenant Reilly announced that the district meeting will be on August 27<sup>th</sup>, at 6:00 p.m., at the Mission Recreation Center, 2450 Harrison Street.

# b. Scheduling of items identified for consideration at future commission meetings

Commissioner Sparks announced that the hearing on the sanctuary city ordinance will be postponed sometime in October until there is a clear resolution on the policy.

#### PUBLIC COMMENT

Daniel Landry discussed concerns regarding community policing plan. Leslie Trask discussed concerns regarding the homicide of the Bologna family and blames the police department and the Mayor for the homicides due to sanctuary ordinance.

### PUBLIC COMMENT ON ALL MATTERS PERTAINING TO CLOSED SESSION

None

### **VOTE ON WHETHER TO HOLD CLOSED SESSION**

\_\_\_\_\_Motion by Commissioner Mazzucco, second by Commissioner Marshall. Approved 4-0.

CLOSED SESSION (8:02 p.m. to 8:16 p.m.)

a. Discussion and possible action to accept or reject stipulated disposition of disciplinary charges filed in case no. C03-147 CCL Put over to September 10<sup>th</sup>.

(Present Commissioners Sparks, Marshall, Lee, Mazzucco, Chief Fong, Lieutenant Reilly, Deputy City Attorney Stump.)

# VOTE TO ELECT WHETHER TO DISCLOSE ANY OR ALL DISCUSSION HELD IN CLOSED SESSION

Motion by Commissioner Mazzucco for non disclosure, second by Commissioner Marshall. Approved 4-0.

### **ADJOURNMENT**

Motion by Commissioner Marshall, second by Commissioner Mazzucco. Approved 4-0.

Commissioner Sparks adjourned the meeting in memory of Mr. Martin Bonnie, son of Commissioner DeJesus, who died an untimely death recently.

Thereafter, the meeting was adjourned at 8:18 p.m.

Lieutenant Joseph Reilly Secretary San Francisco Police Commission

1497/rct